Peak District National Park Authority Tel: 01629 816200 E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk Minicom: 01629 816319 Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE



MINUTES

Meeting:	Planning Committee
Date:	Friday 11 May 2018 at 10.00 am
Venue:	Board Room, Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell
Chair:	Mr P Ancell
Present:	Cllr D Birkinshaw, Cllr P Brady, Cllr C Carr, Cllr D Chapman, Cllr Mrs C Howe, Cllr H Laws, Cllr J Macrae, Cllr Mrs K Potter, Cllr Mrs L C Roberts and Cllr Mrs J A Twigg
	Cllr A McCloy attended to observe and speak but not vote.
Apologies for absence:	Cllr A Hart, Mr R Helliwell and Cllr A Law.

48/18 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the last meeting of the Planning Committee held on the 13 April 2018 were approved as a correct record.

49/18 URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair announced that Cllr Judith Twigg would be leaving the Authority at the end of May after a remarkable period of service, and thanked her for her contribution and dedication to the work of the Planning Committee and wished her well on behalf of all Members.

50/18 MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Item 7

All Members had received an email from the Agent.

Cllr Kath Potter declared that she attended Stoney Middleton Parish Council Meeting, but left before any planning issues were discussed.

Item 8

Cllr David Chapman declared a personal interest as he knew the applicant's sister.

Item 9

Cllr David Chapman declared a personal interest as he knew one of the applicant's sons.

Cllr Judith Twigg declared a personal interest as she knew the applicant's family in her role as a County Councillor.

Item 10

Cllr Kath Potter declared that she attended Stanton-in-the Peak Parish Council Meeting, but left before any planning issues were discussed.

Item 11

All Members declared a personal interest as the application was made by the Peak District National Park Authority.

Item 12

All Members declared a personal interest as the application was made by the Peak District National Park Authority.

51/18 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Four members of the public were present to make representations to the Committee.

52/18 FULL APPLICATION - REAR TWO STOREY EXTENSION AND REPLACEMENT GARAGE. KEYS HOUSE, LIME KILN ROAD, BUTTERTON

The Planning Officer introduced the report.

The Officer recommendation to refuse the application was moved and seconded.

Members considered the application would be more acceptable if the gables were of a similar size to the original to avoid the proposed extension detracting from the appearance of the property.

The motion for refusal was put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To REFUSE the application for the following reasons:

1. By virtue of its massing and design the proposed two storey rear extension would detract from the appearance of the dwellinghouse and would fail to preserve the character of the Butterton Conservation Area, contrary to policies LC4, LH4, and LC5.

53/18 FULL APPLICATION - SITING OF ONE SHEPHERD HUT FOR USE AS HOLIDAY ACCOMMODATION AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT 9 AVENUE CLOSE, STONEY MIDDLETON.

Members had visited the site on the previous day.

The Planning Officer introduced the report.

The following spoke under the Public Participation at Meetings Scheme:

• Ms Caroline McIntyre, Agent

The Officer recommendation to refuse the application was moved and seconded.

Members discussed that although there was limited landscape impact and parking where it was proposed to be sited,, introducing a commercial development to a domestic garden setting was not ideal.

The motion for refusal was put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To REFUSE the application for the following reasons:

- 1. The proposal is unacceptable in principle as it amounts to the creation of a new holiday let dwelling in a permanently sited 'Shepherds Hut' type caravan in the rear garden of an existing dwelling. The proposal is therefore contrary to the policies of the development plan including Core Strategy Policy RT3 and Local Plan policy LR3.
- 2. The materials and general design do not reflect that of the original dwelling or the National Park's local building traditions. Therefore the proposal is not considered to be of a high quality design or detailing. The proposal is incongruous in this domestic setting and wholly contrary to the design policies of the development plan. The site is open to public view from the nearby footpath to the north of the site and would detract from the character of the original dwelling and the established character of the area and the National Park's Landscape. The proposal is therefore contrary to the policies of the development plan including Core Strategy policies GSP1, GSP3, L1, RT3 and Local Plan Policy, , LR3 as well as the Authority's 'Design Guide', 'Detailed Design Guide for Alterations and Extensions' and the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 3. There is no off street parking available to the property. The proposal will generate the need for an additional parking space. The policies of the development plan require adequate parking space and no more and seek to protect residential amenity and the living conditions of communities. The representations and consultation responses that have been received suggest that residents experience difficulty parking already. This demonstrates that there is clearly pressure for the existing parking spaces. The proposal will add further pressure for parking to the existing situation and this is likely to cause an amenity issue for the residents in this community. The proposal is therefore contrary to Core Strategy Policies GSP3, RT3, T7 and Local Plan Policies, LR3, LT11 and the 'Design Guide' paras 5.7-5.9 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

54/18 FULL APPLICATION - ERECTION OF A GENERAL PURPOSE AGRICULTURAL BUILDING - LAND TO THE SOUTH OF NEW CLOSE FARM, OVER HADDON

Members had visited the site on the previous day.

The Planning Officer introduced the report and informed Members that a further letter of representation had been received from an objector since the report had been submitted,

which he then went onto summarise. The Officer also informed Members that a further plan had been submitted by the applicant with a proposed tree planting and landscaping scheme and that the applicant had also offered to make amendments to the design of the building.

The following spoke under the Public Participation at Meetings Scheme:

• Alice Morley - Supporter

A motion for approval contrary to the officer recommendation was moved and seconded.

The motion for approval and subject to conditions was put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To APPROVE the application subject to conditions controlling the following:

- 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within 3 years from the date of this permission.
- 2. Implement tree planting and landscape scheme including the redistribution of the bund.
- 3. Existing barn to be partially remodelled, and new building to match

The meeting was adjourned at 11:25am for a short break and reconvened at 11.35am

55/18 FULL APPLICATION - PROPOSED OPEN GENERAL PURPOSE AGRICULTURAL BUILDING TO HOUSE LIVESTOCK AND STORE FODDER AND IMPLEMENTS AT MAYFIELD FARM, LITTON SLACK.

Members had visited the site on the previous day.

A motion for approval was moved and seconded but not carried.

Members felt that this item needed further consideration and that alternative sites should be considered which would have a lesser impact on the landscape.

A motion to defer the application to consider alternative sites was moved, seconded, put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To DEFER the application to allow the Officers and the Applicant to consider alternative sites and other improvements.

Cllr David Chapman left the meeting at 12:17pm

56/18 FULL APPLICATION - PROPOSED OUTBUILDING TO CREATE GARDEN STORE. THE COTTAGE, CONGREAVE LANE, PIILHOUGHPILHOUGH, STANTON-IN-PEAK.

Members had visited the site on the previous day.

The Planning Officer introduced the report.

The following spoke under the Public Participation at Meetings Scheme:

- Ian Mortimor, on behalf of the Parish Council, Objector
- Sue Fogg, Objector

Members raised concerns regarding the over development of the property, but it was considered that the building would be in keeping with the immediate surroundings and wider locality.

The Officer recommendation to approve the application was moved, seconded, put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To APPROVE the application subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within 3 years from the date of this permission.
- 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance with the submitted drawing number 1781-200 and subject to the following conditions.
- 3. The roof shall be clad with natural blue slate to match the existing dwelling.
- 4. All new stonework shall be in natural gritstone, faced, coursed and pointed to match the existing dwelling.
- 5. All door frames shall be recessed a minimum of 100mm from the external face of the wall.
- 6. All door openings shall be provided with natural gritstone lintels.
- 7. The external doors shall be of timber construction and vertically boarded.
- 8. The timber finish shall be coloured a Stone Grey (RAL 7030).
- 9. All pipework other than rainwater goods shall be internal within the building.
- 10. The rooflights shall be fitted flush with the roofslope.
- 11. The building hereby approved shall not be used for any other purposes than a garden store ancillary to the main dwelling (The Cottage).
- 12. Prior to the store being erected, the existing timber shed shall be dismantled and permanently removed from the site.
- 13. Remove permitted development rights for further ancillary buildings, gates, fences, walls or other means of boundary enclosure.

Cllr Judith Twigg left the meeting at 12.30pm and returned at 12.35pm but did not take part in the discussion of this item

Cllr Judith Twigg left the meeting at 12.45pm

57/18 FULL APPLICATIONFULL APPLICATION - INSTALLATION OF W.C. FACILITY IN OLD BOILER ROOM, INSTALLATION OF KITCHENETTE IN SCHOOL ROOM ANDROOM AND NEW DOMESTIC PACKAGE TREATMENT PLANT TO BE LOCATED IN ADJACENT CAR PARK TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED PIPEWORK. REINSTATEMENT OF WINDOW. SCHOOL ROOM, MOOR ROAD, REAPSMOOR, LONGNOR

The Chair advised that as Items 11 and 12 on the agenda were linked, they would be considered together. (See also minute 59/18).

The Officer introduced the report on the application by the Peak District National Park Authority.

Members welcomed the application to restore the building for it to be used by the Church, Parish Council and others for community use.

The Officer recommendation to approve the application was moved, seconded, put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To APPROVE the application subject to the following conditions:

- 1. 3 year time limit
- 2. In accordance with the submitted plan and schedule of works
- 3. Notwithstanding the submitted plans a package treatment plant as specified in the supporting documents shall be installed to deal with waste water from the site in place of the septic tank shown.
- 4. Detailed design of new window to be agreed
- 5. Position and design of soil vent pipe to be agreed
- 6. Scheme of external lighting to be agreed
- 58/18 LISTED BUILDING CONSENT APPLICATION INSTALLATION OF W.C. FACILITY IN OLD BOILER ROOM, INSTALLATION OF KITCHENETTE IN SCHOOL ROOM AND NEW DOMESTIC PACKAGE TREATMENT PLANT TO BE LOCATED IN ADJACENT CAR PARK TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED PIPEWORK. REINSTATEMENT OF WINDOW. SCHOOL ROOM, MOOR ROAD, REAPSMOOR, LONGNOR

This item was considered in conjunction with the related planning application, details of which are in Minute 58/18 above.

The Officer recommendation to approve the application was moved, seconded, put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

To APPROVE the application subject to the following conditions:

- 1. 3 year time limit
- 2. In accordance with the submitted plan and schedule of works
- 3. Detailed design of new window to be agreed
- 4. New door to WC to match the existing
- 5. Details of any structural works to the building to be agreed
- 6. Position and design of soil vent pipe to be agreed
- 7. Scheme of external lighting to be agreed

59/18 MINERALS TEAM REVIEW 2017-2018

The Head of Development Management presented the report and informed the Committee of two additional pieces of information.

- That the Peak District National Park Authority had been shortlisted for a Royal Town Planning Institute National Award for Planning Excellence in the Heritage and Culture Category, in relation to our work in devising and delivering the Stanton Moor Principles.
- Following a representation made by the Authority on the Parliamentary Committee Inquiry on Hydraulic Fracturing and Shale Gas Extraction, the Authority has been invited to speak to the Select Committee in London. A copy of the representation would be sent to all Members for their information.

The Minerals Team had still not filled the outstanding vacancy for Minerals Team Manager, plus they were carrying a vacancy for the Technician role, so they were having to prioritise work which would mean less site monitoring, but they were confident that there would be the capacity to deal with any major work that came in.

Members thanked Officers for a clear concise report and congratulated them on being shortlisted for the Award.

The report was moved and seconded, voted on and carried.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

The Committee voted to agree to continue the meeting beyond 3 hours in accordance with Standing Order 1.10

60/18 ANNUAL REPORT ON PLANNING APPEALS 2017/18

The Director of Conservation & Planning presented the annual report, and confirmed that although the percentage of appeals lost over 2017/18 was higher than previous years,

there were no underlying concerns and no major challenges to policy when each case was considered on its merits. Every decision is assessed when it is received. This was raised with Members at the time and any lessons learned were discussed.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

61/18 HEAD OF LAW REPORT - PLANNING APPEALS

A motion to receive the report was moved, seconded, put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

That the report be received.

The meeting ended at 1.30 pm